
 

 
 

Law & Democracy 
Democratic Services 

 

 

 

T O  C O U N C I L L O R : 
 

Mrs R H Adams (Mayor) 
N Alam 

L A Bentley 
G A Boulter 
J W Boyce 

Mrs L M Broadley 
F S Broadley 
D M Carter 

M H Charlesworth 

Mrs H E Darling JP 
M L Darr 

Mrs L Eaton JP 
D A Gamble 

F S Ghattoraya 
Mrs S Z Haq 

Miss P V Joshi 
J Kaufman (Deputy Mayor) 

Mrs L Kaufman 

Miss A Kaur 
Ms C D Kozlowski 
Mrs H E Loydall 

K J Loydall 
D W Loydall 

Mrs S B Morris 
R E R Morris 
Dr I K Ridley 

 

I summon you to attend the following meeting for the transaction of the business in the agenda below. 
 

Meeting: Full Council 

Date and Time: Tuesday, 7 February 2023, 6.30 pm 

Venue: Council Offices, Bushloe House, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR 

Special Title: Extraordinary, Review of Membership of Council Bodies etc.. 

Contact: Democratic Services 

t:  (0116) 257 2775 

e:  democratic.services@oadby-wigston.gov.uk 

 
 Yours faithfully 

 

 
Meeting ID:  2472 

Council Offices 
Wigston 
30 January 2023 

 
 

Mrs Anne E Court 
Chief Executive 

 

 

It has cost £2.20 to print, package and post this single agenda pack for this meeting. 

A full cost breakdown for all agenda packs for this meeting is provided further down.. 

 

I T E M  N O .  A G E N D A  P A G E  N O ’ S  

 

 Live Stream of Meeting | Instructions  

 This meeting will be live streamed. 
 
Press & Public Access:  
 
YouTube Live Stream  

 

~ Page 1 ~



 

Full Council (Extraordinary) 
Tuesday, 7 February 2023, 6.30 pm 

 Printed and published by Democratic Services, 
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Council Offices, 

Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR 
 

A direct link to the live stream of the meeting's proceedings on the Council's 
YouTube Channel is below.  
 

https://youtu.be/-DnIEclnzME  

1.   Calling to Order of the Meeting  

 The meeting of the Council will be called to order to receive Her Worship The 
Mayor and Deputy Mayor. 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from Members to determine the quorum of the 
meeting in accordance with Rule 7 of Part 4 of the Constitution. 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

 Members are reminded that any declaration of interest should be made having 
regard to the Members’ Code of Conduct. In particular, Members must make 
clear the nature of the interest and whether it is 'pecuniary' or ‘non-pecuniary'. 

 

4.   Review of Membership of Council Bodies etc. (February 2023) 3 - 8 

 Report of the Legal & Democratic Services Manager / Deputy Monitoring Officer  

 
You can access all available public meeting documents  

and audio-visual live streams and recordings electronically on: 
 

  

  

    

Our website oadby-
wigston.gov.uk under 

'Your Council’ and 
‘Meeting Dates, 

Agendas & Minutes’  

Your smart iPad, 
Android or 

Windows device 
with the intuitive 

‘Modern.Gov’ app 

Our YouTube Channel 
available at 

bit.ly/3vji3FY or 
smart device with the 

‘YouTube’ app. 

Our audio platform 
soundcloud.com/ 
oadbywigstonbc or 
smart device with the 
‘SoundCloud’ app 

 

 

The cost breakdown for printing, packaging and posting the agenda pack for 
this meeting (excluding any carbon footprint impact) is calculated as follows: 

 

 This agenda pack (1) All agenda packs (15)  

Paper, ink and envelope 
(A4 white, colour, C4 envelope) 

£0.46 £6.90 

Postage 
(1st class, small) 

£1.74 £26.10 

Officer time 
(Pro rata hourly rate) 

n/a £11.81 

 

Total cost(s) £2.20 £44.81 
 

Please contact Democratic Services to discuss the more cost-effective and environmentally-friendly 
options available for receiving this agenda pack, including any IT and/or training requirements. 

 

~ Page 2 ~

https://youtu.be/-DnIEclnzME
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://apps.apple.com/gb/app/modern-gov/id1453414073?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
https://www.microsoft.com/en-gb/p/moderngov/9pfpjqcvz8nl
https://bit.ly/3vji3FY
https://apps.apple.com/us/app/youtube-watch-listen-stream/id544007664
https://soundcloud.com/oadbywigstonbc
https://soundcloud.com/oadbywigstonbc
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/soundcloud-music-audio/id336353151?mt=8
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/soundcloud-music-audio/id336353151?mt=8


 

 

 

Full Council 
(Extraordinary) 

Tuesday, 07 
February 2023 

Matter for 
Information and 

Decision 

 

Report Title: Review of Membership of Council Bodies etc.  
(February 2023) 

Report Author(s): Samuel Ball (Legal & Democratic Services  
Manager / Deputy Monitoring Officer) 

 

Purpose of Report: Following a recent change to the political balance of the Council, it is 
obliged to review Member representation on the Committees, Sub-
Committees, Boards, Panels, Forums and Working Groups of the 
Council (“Council Bodies”) which it appoints to ensure that these 
reflect the make-up of the political groups on the Council as a whole. 

Report Summary: On 10 January 2023, Councillor Naveed Alam resigned from the Lib-
eral Democrats and joined the Conservatives. This triggered a review 
of the Council’s proportionality arrangements in relation to the eligible 
Member representation and allocation of seats on Council bodies. 
Reappointments to those affected Council Bodies by political group 
should now be made to reflect the Council’s new political composition. 

Recommendation(s): A. That the new political composition of the Council, and the 
proportionality arrangements in relation to minimum 
eligible Member representation and allocation of seats on 
Council bodies by political group (as set out at 
Appendices 1 and 2 to this report) be noted;  

 
B. That the nominated removals and appointments of 

Members from/to those affected Council bodies for the 
remainder of the municipal year 2022/23 (as set out at 
paragraph 2.2 of this report) be approved; and 

 
C. That a nominated appointment to serve as the Chair of 

the Children and Young Peoples’ Forum and the Oadby 
Residents’ Forum for the remainder of the municipal year 
2022/23 (as set out at paragraph 3.3 of this report) be 
resolved (as may be necessary and agreed). 

Senior Leadership, 
Head of Service, 
Manager, Officer and 
Other Contact(s): 

David Gill (Head of Law & Democracy / Monitoring Officer) 
(0116) 257 2626 
david.gill@oadby-wigston.gov.uk  
 
Samuel Ball (Legal & Democratic Services Manager / Deputy 
Monitoring Officer) 
(0116) 257 2643 
samuel.ball@oadby-wigston.gov.uk 

Corporate Objectives: Not applicable. 

Vision and Values: Not applicable. 

Report Implications:- 

~ Page 3 ~

Agenda Item 4

mailto:david.gill@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:samuel.ball@oadby-wigston.gov.uk


 

 

Legal: Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires 
the Council to review the representation of different political groups 
on bodies to which the Council makes appointments as soon as 
practicable after changes in membership of political groups occur. 
 
Failure to adhere to the relevant provisions of Local Government Act 
1972, Local Government and Housing Act 1989, Local Government Act 
2000, the Regulations made thereunder, and provisions of the Coun-
cil’s Constitution may result in the Council acting beyond its powers. 

Financial: There are no implications arising from this report. 

Corporate Risk 
Management: 

Political Dynamics (CR3) 
Regulatory Governance (CR6) 

Equalities and Equalities 
Assessment (EA): 

There are no implications arising from this report. 
EA not applicable. 

Human Rights: There are no implications arising from this report. 

Health and Safety: There are no implications arising from this report. 

Statutory Officers’ Comments:- 

Head of Paid Service: The report is satisfactory. 

Chief Finance Officer: The report is satisfactory. 

Monitoring Officer: The report is satisfactory. 

Consultees:  Councillor J W Boyce (Liberal Democrat Group Leader)  
 Councillor Miss P V Joshi (Conservative Group Leader) 

Background Papers: None.  

Appendices: 1. Minimum Eligible Representation of Members by Political Group 
2. Minimum Allocation of Seats to Political Groups (January 2023) 

 

1. Political Composition of the Council 

1.1 On 10 January 2023, the Monitoring Officer was informed by Councillor Naveed Alam that, 
with immediate effect, he resigned from the Liberal Democrat Party and joined the 
Conservative Party and wished to form part of the Conservative political group on the 
Council. As a result, the political composition of the Council changed from 23 Liberal 
Democrats and 3 Conservatives to 22 Liberal Democrats and 4 Conservatives. 

1.2 Consequently, a review of the Council’s proportionality arrangements in relation to 
minimum eligible Member representation and allocation of seats on Council Bodies, was 
triggered, resulting in the Liberal Democrat political group now being entitled to 84.62% of 
seats of Council Bodies and the Conservative political group being entitled to 15.38%. 

1.3 A full break down of the revised political balance of the Council, and its proportionality 
arrangements in terms of minimum eligible Member representation and allocation of seats 
on Council bodies, is reflected in the figurework set out at Appendix 1 and Appendix 2. 

~ Page 4 ~



 

 

2. Removal and Appointment of Members to Council Bodies  

2.1 The revised political balance of the Council affects on the following Council Bodies: 

2.1.1. The Liberal Democrat political group LOSE one (1) seat on: 
 
 Policy, Finance and Development Committee 
 Development Control Committee 
 Place Shaping Working Group 

 
2.1.2. The Conservative political group GAIN one (1) seat on: 

 
 Policy, Finance and Development Committee 

 Development Control Committee 
 Place Shaping Working Group 

 
2.1.3. There is one (1) VACANCY for the Liberal Democrat political group on: 

 
 Service Delivery Committee 
 Children and Young Peoples’ Forum 

 
Note: These vacant seats are retained by the Liberal Democrats, and do not 
automatically transfer over with Councillor Alam to the Conservatives, otherwise 
there will be an over-representation of Conservative Members on Council Bodies. 

2.2 At the time of publication of this report, the following nominations have been received, 
after consultation with each of Council’s political party groups’ leaders, for the removal and 
appointment of following Members from/to those affected Council Bodies accordingly. 

Council Body Remove Appoint 

Children and Young Peoples’ Forum Vacancy 
(Liberal Democrat) 

Awaiting Nomination 
(Liberal Democrat) 

Development Control Committee   
Mrs H E Loydall 

(Liberal Democrat) 

Nomination Declined  
Vacancy  

(Conservative) 

Place Shaping Working Group 
Awaiting Confirmation 

(Liberal Democrat) 

Nomination Declined  
Vacancy  

(Conservative) 

Policy, Finance and  
Development Committee 

N Alam 
(Liberal Democrat) 

N Alam 
(Conservative) 

Service Delivery Committee Vacancy 
(Liberal Democrat) 

Awaiting Nomination  
(Liberal Democrat) 

 
2.3. Where a political group has declined to nominate a Member, that seat will be allocated 

against that political group as ‘vacant’ to maintain proportional allocation. Where a seat is 
awaiting confirmation and/or a nomination, these can be tabled at the meeting itself. 
 

3. Reappointment of Chairs to Council Bodies 

3.1 At the Annual General Meeting of the Full Council on 10 May 2022, Councillor Alam was 
appointed the Chair of the following Council Bodies whilst, at the time, forming part 
Liberal Democrat political group: 

~ Page 5 ~



 

 

 Children and Young Peoples’ Forum 
 Oadby Residents Forum 

3.2 In light of the above, it is open to Council to resolve whether to retain Councillor Alam’s 
current appointment(s) or to reappoint the Chair of the these Council Bodies.  

3.3 If Council is so minded to re-appointment, at the time of publication of this report, the 
following nominations have been received, after consultation with each of Council’s 
political party groups’ leaders, to re-appoint the following Member(s) as Chairs. 

Council Body (Chair) Liberal Democrat Conservative 

Children and Young Peoples’ Forum Awaiting Confirmation Nomination Declined  

Oadby Resident’s Forum Awaiting Confirmation Nomination Declined  

 
3.4.  Where a nominated appointee(s) for Chair has been received from each respective political 

group, Council must resolve which nominee is to be appointed accordingly. 

 

 

~ Page 6 ~



 

 

 
 

Minimum Eligible Representation of Members by Political Group as of January 20231 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

                                                
 

1  Local Government and Housing Act 1989, ss. 15-17 and The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 
≈  Figure equivalent to the nearest approximate whole number. 

Committee 
Size 

Liberal Democrat 
(22/26) = 84.62% 

Conservative 
(4/26) = 15.38% 

Members ≈ Members ≈ 

 26 22.00 22 4.00 4 

 25 21.16 21 3.85 4 

 24 20.31 20 3.69 4 

≈ 
23 19.46 19 3.54 4 

22 18.62 19 3.38 3 

 21 17.77 18 3.23 3 

 20 16.92 17 3.08 3 

 19 16.08 16 2.92 3 

 18 15.23 15 2.77 3 

≈ 
17 14.39 14 2.61 3 

16 13.54 14 2.46 2 

 15 12.69 13 2.31 2 

 14 11.85 12 2.15 2 

 13 11.00 11 2.00 2 

 12 10.15 10 1.85 2 

 11 9.31 9 1.69 2 

≈ 
10 8.46 8 1.54 2 

9 7.62 8 1.38 1 

 8 6.77 7 1.23 1 

 7 5.92 6 1.08 1 

 6 5.08 5 0.92 1 

 5 4.23 4 0.77 1 

≈ 
4 3.38 3 0.62 1 

3 2.54 3 0.46 0 

 2 1.69 2 0.31 0 

 1 0.85 1 0.15 0 

~
 P

age 7 ~

A
ppendix 1



 

Minimum Allocation of Seats to Political Groups on  
Relevant Council Bodies Directly Appointed by the Council as of January 20231 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Minimum Allocation of Seats to Political Groups on Relevant  
Council Bodies Directly Facilitated by the Council as of January 2023 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                
 

1      Local Government and Housing Act 1989, ss. 15-17 and The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 

 

Relevant Council Body (in size order) Size 

Liberal Democrat 
(22/26) = 84.62% +/-  

Conservative 
(4/26) = 15.38% +/-  

Independent  
Person(s) 

Members Members 

Policy, Finance and Development Committee 17 14 - 1 3 + 1  

Service Delivery Committee 15 13  2   

Licensing and Regulatory Committee 14 12  2   

Development Control Committee   10 8 - 1 2 + 1  

Place Shaping Working Group 10 8 - 1 2 + 1  

Audit Committee 8 6  1  1 

Constitutional Working Group 5 4  1   

People Committee 5 4  1   

Brocks Hill/Office Relocation Sub-Committee 5 4  1   

Former Oadby Pool Site Sub-Committee 5 4  1   

IT and Communications Working Group   5 4  1   

Environment Working Group 5 4  1   

Armed Forces Working Group 4 3  1   

Relevant Council Body (in size order) Size 

Liberal Democrat 
(22/26) = 84.62% +/- 

Conservative 
(4/26) = 15.38% +/- 

Members Members 

Health and Wellbeing Board 6 5  1  

Community Engagement Forum 6 5  1  

Children and Young Peoples’ Forum 5 4  1  

Community Safety Partnership 1 1  0  

~
 P

age 8 ~

A
ppendix 2


	Agenda
	4 Review of Membership of Council Bodies etc. (February 2023)
	Appendix 1 - Minimum Eligible Representation of Members by Political Group
	Appendix 2 - Minimum Allocation of Seats to Political Groups


